
Page 1 of 9 

 
                                                                                                                                                                                                    
 
 

 
 

GREENHEAD COLLEGE CORPORATION 
Minutes of the Finance & Estates Committee meeting held in Room G17 

Monday 20 February 2023, 4.30pm 
 

Govs present: Adrian Barrass; Chris Kneale; Craig Shannon; John Holroyd 
(Chair); Richard Armstrong (Vice Chair); Simon Lett (Principal) 

 

In attendance:  Mark Jones; Karen Wood; Jess Norcliffe (to 17:30); Mo Bunter; 
Sarah Celensu (to 18:05); Sharon Roper (Clerk) 

 

Apologies:  Lisa Wilkinson; Mohammed Usman 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
1. Welcome, 
apologies, 
chairing 
 

 
JHO welcomed participants.  
Apologies as above. 

 
 

 
2. Declarations 
 

 
No declarations of pecuniary/prejudicial interest. 

 
 

 
3. Minutes 13/6/22 
 

 
3.1 Minutes 14/11/22, previously circulated, agreed by 
Committee, signed by Chair, returned to Clerk for filing. 
 
3.2 Matters arising not covered on agenda: 
 
1. RAR asked if August 2022 accounts have ever been 
circulated, KWO replied she has not seen a separate report 
for August. 
 
2. Min 4.11, we are in scope for the Energy Bill discounts 
which have been extended from 1/4/23 to 31/3/24. 
 
3. Min 4.10, JHO did not receive a response from JBL 
regarding only £1.6 million more in the cash flow tab if the 
surplus will be over £2 million. 
 
4. JHO wants the procedure checking on the investment 
platform Flagstone to ensure it is running smoothly. CSH 
said there is a link between 140 cash days and how we 
account for the investment platform within that. 140 days is 
not being hit largely because we’re investing. KWO said she 
has not found any workings to explain the 140 days. 
JHO asked if we want the cash days with all the cash plus 
money on Flagstone or calculated on available cash 
excluding Flagstone. CSH said some of the money matures 

 
 
Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 9 

within 140 days so should be included and asked what 
buffer is needed. 
RAR thought that ESFA set a minimum number of days and 
they issue guidance, he said it’s never been resolved if it’s 
140 days average over the year or each month. KWO said 
it’s for the college to decide what to measure, RAR said 
ESFA will have trigger points, and this can add to our points 
value, and we wouldn’t want it to affect our Outstanding 
Financial score. 
ESFA have contacted MJO because he is new to the role 
and SLE said this is an ideal opportunity for MJO to ask 
about this. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MJO 

 
4. General Site & 
Maintenance 
Update 

 
4. SLE referred to a note that was circulated to this 
committee in November and a note has also been 
circulated prior to this meeting regarding remedial work 
required on the site. 
 
4.1 The current contract held with Water Safe is a basic 
level contract. The risk assessment we have is dated 2014. 
Water Safe visited last week to undertake a new risk 
assessment and the new report will take 2 weeks. 
The actions from the old risk assessment have not been 
completed. 
Most of the issues relate to the science block which is due 
to be demolished but there will be further expenditure 
needed on the site to action the report. 
 
4.2 The Fire Risk assessment was also out of date; JNO 
and the premises team have been working to update it. 
Costs have been incurred on emergency lighting and lift 
repairs. Further expenditure is required on fire zones, 
smoke heads and the fire call points in the main building. 
Most of the site needs upgrading to the specification of the 
new build. This will get the fire regulations up to date. SLE 
will confirm when he knows the cost. 
CSH clarified that when the new building is handed over 
advice will be sought on the old buildings not the new one, 
SLE confirmed it will be about the old buildings. JNO said 
an external company will be asked to do a thorough 
inspection when the old science building is no longer in use. 
ABA suggested a holistic approach to look at zoning, 
evacuation routes and overall fire and evacuation policy, to 
support the legacy building and new build before committing 
to funds. 
SLE said the interim evacuation process will change again 
when the new building is open, and the science building is 
no longer used. 
 
4.3 PAT Testing is being completed on approximately 
12,500 items by an external company initially and then in 
future will be brought in-house. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SLE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 9 

4.4 The above (Mins 4.1,4.2 & 4.3) has resulted in the 
premises budget going over the expected out-turn, but it is 
essential health and safety expenditure which has come to 
light after going through old estates files that were out of 
date. 
There is more expenditure to come following the fire risk 
assessment. 
SLE and MJO will work on a definitive account of what 
needs doing, by when and the cost and provide this for SLT 
and Governors. 
CSH said there has been a governance or management 
failure if statutory requirements have not been completed. 
These matters should be covered on an agenda regularly 
so governors can be assured that we’re compliant.   
SLE gave an example of asking about the risks of legionella 
after the site had been closed for covid lockdown, he was 
verbally assured this was checked monthly when in fact the 
water company only check the temperature of the water in 
the tanks each month and not all the campus was included 
in this check. 
ABA asked about a process from now on that ensures the 
correct process is embedded and there is visibility and 
tracking. JNO said that the premises team are putting a 
schedule together of all the mandatory testing that is 
needed on site. ABA asked if this was backed up by a 
policy, JNO said there isn’t, but this can be put in place. 
CKN asked about any legal ramifications, MJO confirmed 
there are legal frameworks around these issues. MBR said 
that everything will be moved to SharePoint to ensure 
transparency and that all the documents are accessible to 
SLT. 
ABA said risk assessments like COSHH and LOLER, 
although might be kept in specific departments, need pulling 
together and adding to the overall risk assessment. 
JHO said governors need to know that we are compliant 
and monitoring needs to happen to ensure we stay 
compliant. This needs to come back to the next F&E 
meeting and to A&R meeting. 
ABA asked about escalated risk that needs prioritisation, 
SLE said these are fire and water.  
RAR said the expenditure incurred was under the delegated 
authority, there is more to do, and statutory requirements 
must be met. RAR said governors want to know that 
management policies and processes are in place and meet 
the requirements. 
ABA asked for a position statement for visibility by the 
Corporation and to ensure the risk is being managed 
effectively.  
CSH asked where the legal responsibility sits, RAR said it 
sits with the governors. MBR said that SLE has legal 
accountability for health and safety. 
MBR said that the premises team has taken responsibility 
for resolving the situation, have found solutions, identified 
serious issues and been very cooperative and helpful. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SLE/MJO 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JNO 
 
 
 
Premises/
MJO 
 
 
 
 
 
Clerk for 
agendas 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 9 

JHO reiterated that a written position statement is required, 
it was clarified that it needs to include risks, an action plan, 
and timescales, it will go to F&E committee and A&R 
committee before their next scheduled meetings. 
 

 
 
 
SLE 

 
5. November & 
December 
accounts & 
narrative 

 
Committee considered November and December 2022 
management accounts & narrative, previously circulated, 
the discussion centred around December’s accounts.  
 
1. KWO said the current operating surplus at the end of 
December was £1.596 million, an increase of £296,000 
compared to last year, it’s less than the budget of £1,670k. 
2. The budget is assuming a 5% pay rise, because it will be 
back paid to September, each month it’s been assumed it 
has been paid by putting in an accrual. The £150,000 
contingency is being pushed out, this is more than enough 
to cover a 5% pay rise as there are fewer staff but it’s not 
been reduced because it’s in the budget and we don’t know 
what the pay rise will be yet. 
3. Expenditure YTD is £5.545m which is £262k higher than 
budget. Most of the overspend is due to canteen costs and 
premises. 
4. CSH said the variance for the back pay in November was 
£96,000 and in December was £128000, KWO confirmed it 
is £32,000 per month, showing through the pay rise liability 
line. KWO said the teaching staff line has not shown a pay 
rise yet, CSH asked about the counteracting effect in that 
line and KWO said it is reducing by almost the equivalent of 
the pay rise liability line increasing. 
5. RAR asked if extra income has been received as 
operating surplus is down by £74,000 YTD although 
expenditure is up by £262,000. The energy grant and 
capital spend has been received. Teaching staff out-turn is 
less than budgeted as three staff weren’t replaced. RAR 
noted support staff are over budget, KWO said there are 
more support staff than in the budget and also support staff 
have received a 5% pay rise, 3.5% was budgeted for. MBR 
said one ALS staff member is funded and a claim for them 
is made from the Skills Fund.  
SLE said there are 3 additional ALS staff, 2 IT technicians, 
a HR staff member, and a science technician. 
MJO to look at rebasing the budget. 
6. CSH said in the full year forecast £700,000 negative 
variance has been seen in one month November to 
December. KWO explained £445,000 Student Financial 
Support Funding was included in November in error. CSH 
said there is still a £250,000 variance and he would like an 
explanation of what has caused this shift. RAR said the 
budget may have been underset and this may need 
revisiting, otherwise is there scope to achieve efficiencies 
elsewhere in the budget. SLE doesn’t think efficiencies can 
be achieved and the variances are due to premises, 
catering, settlement and admin and ALS staff. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MJO 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 9 

7. CSH was surprised that the settlement wasn’t in the full 
year projection. JHO thinks this wasn’t included due to the 
changeover in finance managers. CSH wants to see a 
reconciliation and explanation detailing the changes, and 
then a decision can be made about resetting the budget. 
8. JHO asked if the additional income for energy efficiency 
must be spent on capital expenditure, SLE said an energy 
efficient project has been selected for the funds. JHO said it 
is showing as additional income so it’s reducing the 
potential year end deficit, but when the money goes out 
where will it be shown. SLE confirmed it will be mainly 
capital items in response to KWO’s question. JHO said if 
any of the funds will be expensed before the end of the 
financial year, it will need accruing. 
9. SLE said the settlement wasn’t factored into the budget 
and the additional premises expenditure was unknown in 
September. Although there continues to be questions and 
uncertainties about the monthly accounts this is now due to 
unexpected expense in-year and the finance director 
leaving has caused a lot of work in the finance department.  
CSH said now MJO is in role, the opportunity must be taken 
to rebase the budget if necessary and fix the way the 
information is recorded as accruals and ensure items go 
through the balance sheet correctly.  
JHO said an example of this is premises spend, potential 
expenditure needs showing in the out-turn and any costs 
that haven’t been invoiced yet should be accrued. 
10. JHO thanked KWO, SCE and SLE for their work on the 
finances. 
11. KWO said the premises share of the budget in out-turn 
needs reconciling with SLE’s statement of what needs 
doing. RAR said the premises schedule will have changed 
and be reprioritised so there will be some offsetting to do. 
MBR said expertise may have to be bought in for some of 
the premises’ work and will be more expensive. 
12. JHO asked about the funding rate increase, SLE said 
this has increased by 2.2% next year, and KWO and MJO 
will start to look at next year’s budget. KWO said there are 
fewer A1’s going to A2’s next year, SLE said there are 
plans to recruit more A1’s in September to increase income 
for the following year. RAR said we usually see a draft 
budget in April and try to sign it off in June. MBR knows 
how many students she wants to recruit and will pass this 
information onto KWO and MJO. 
13. SLE said he has asked what happens if there is no 
resolution to the teachers’ pay award by the end of the 
academic year and SFCA did not know. SFCA said that 
back pay wouldn’t necessarily be paid out. RAR said there 
will be tax implications for staff when back pay is made.  
SLE said that there was a strong mandate from the sixth 
form colleges not to go over 5% as it was unaffordable. 
Some colleges have already paid 5% but SFCA said it 
undermines the negotiations and some colleges have given 
their staff a lump sum payment. 

 
 
 
 
KWO/MJO 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MBR 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 9 

14. CSH said potential pay scenarios that are not reflected 
in the budget should be looked at. RAR suggested looking 
at what is being recommended by the unions in England 
and Wales for the NHS. SLE said this should be done and 
linked to other long-term scenarios like the free school. 
 

 
 
 
 
KWO/MJO 

 
6. Catering 
Update 

 
JNO summarised papers including an update, price 
increases and a staff and student catering survey, 
previously circulated, 
 
There is a meeting on 28/2/23 with Aramark where they will 
make a presentation, following that a decision needs 
making whether to stay with them, go out to tender or come 
back in-house. 
The main concern from the survey is the cost for students, 
which is significantly higher than in other colleges and the 
quality of food. The survey results have been shared with 
Aramark. 
Aramark have confirmed new price increases on some 
items, and lines including breakfast items are being 
discontinued.  
JNO asked Aramark how the gross profit is calculated, and 
they could not explain it, MBR has worked this out. 
It’s thought that the price could be reduced if it was brought 
back in-house. CKN feels they are very inflexible, and there 
are no meal deal options available.  
Under the terms of the contract GC seems to be 
responsible for a lot. 
RAR said the contract differs from the tender document 
which did offer meal deals and different types of food, there 
is a material difference from the tender to the contract. CSH 
said companies often over promise in tender and then leave 
the contracts as flexible as possible so they can make 
money out of them. RAR said that GC used a consultant 
who should have ensured that the commitments in the 
tender were also in the contract. 
MJO had a positive experience with the catering company 
at his previous employers, but they have recently been 
bought out ‘untouched’ by Aramark.  
MJO noted that the sales volumes are low on the figures 
produced by Aramark. 
CSH asked if we are convinced that catering can make 
money in a college, as GC didn’t make a profit when it was 
previously in-house.  MBR felt this was due to a cook not 
being employed. MBR said in her previous college, a profit 
was made, it was outsourced, and they had offers like 
Costa Coffee at a reasonable price. MBR feels there are 
organisations out there who have got the catering model 
right. CSH said we need to look objectively at what can be 
achieved bearing in mind alternative suppliers are located 
nearby.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 7 of 9 

RAR said that we may have more than one facility by then 
and costs may increase when catering for two sites which 
may be difficult to provide in-house.  
JHO said the contract does not end until August 2024. MBR 
said that GC have to give Aramark six months’ notice, and 
RAR said that the market needs testing before a decision is 
made.  
JHO asked when the catering will move to the Hirst 
Building, JNO said when it opens which will probably be 
October. RAR wants to know what Aramark think their 
additional costs will be when they move over there, they 
were willing to invest in new facilities during the tender, they 
now expect GC to bear the cost in the new building. MJO 
said they are willing to spend £70,000 if their contract is 
extended to five years but this will mostly be spent on front 
of house displays rather than kitchen equipment. 
ABA asked if Aramark are aware of GC’s displeasure, JNO 
said up until she has recently started meeting with them, 
they have not previously been challenged and had 
assumed everything was ok. Since then, they have 
introduced a value range and ‘Pound Wednesdays’.  
CSH said the contract appears to be in their favour, and 
MBR said she wasn’t sure legally if we could terminate the 
contract.  
RAR said GC has now found out that we have been double 
charged for free school meals, KWO said Aramark would 
not have known this was happening, it was a GC process. 
There’s too much data to export and IT will have to get the 
information from the system. 
CSH presumes now this has been discovered they are 
making less money than they thought, KWO agreed and 
said there probably isn’t enough profit to repay GC. 
SLE said the double charging has not been reflected in the 
budget yet and it will be approximately £90,000. 
RAR said the contract was for 3 years with an option to 
extend for 2 years if we were satisfied with performance 
and delivery including costs. ABA said the relationship 
needs actively managing to the contract and use that work 
to inform the strategy going forward. JHO asked if there are 
clauses in the contract regarding early termination, MBR 
does not think that is in the contract. 
The Aramark regional director was unaware that it is in the 
contract to survey students monthly to gain feedback. CSH 
said it appears that they are not fulfilling the contract. 
KWO said there may be pre-payment cards from students 
who have left over the years with balances on them. 
RAR said going forward we need to understand why 
Aramark believe there will be further costs relating to 
moving into the new building, and a decision about 
retendering or moving into an in-house service. CSH added 
that there might be an opportunity to be more aggressive 
about Aramark fulfilling contract terms. 
SLE said these questions will be asked in the meeting 
28/2/23 with Aramark and feedback given to the governors. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SLE 
 



Page 8 of 9 

CSH feels that Aramark do not fully understand GC’s 
dissatisfaction as they have offered capital expenditure if 
we extend their contract. 
MBR said Aramark invoiced GC £4500 in error two months 
in a row to fix a fryer. 
MBR said the canteen is used as a treat because the prices 
are so expensive, and it would be used more if it was 
affordable. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7. New Build Risk 
Register 
 

 
SLE said that MJO will begin working on the Risk Register 
(today is his first day in role). CDC committee (23/11/22) 
want the risks not under our control in addition to risks 
under our control looking at. 
(5.10) ‘The end design does not meet College needs or fits 
the strategic brief or what was planned’. This risk has been 
increased. The teams who are moving into the Hirst building 
looked around the site in January, the feedback was 
positive except for Reprographics who feel that the space is 
inadequate. At the outset of the build DfE and Mace were 
assured that this space was big enough. 
CSH asked if the likelihood score on the register has been 
increased for this risk, this was confirmed by SLE. 
JHO asked if further work can be done to move any of the 
blue risks into green. MJO and SLE will look at this. 
 
CKN said that parking is currently an ongoing issue. 
SLE said the car park that we rented on Park Avenue is no 
longer available to us. The discussion that followed is 
confidential.  
Alternative options for parking are being explored as there 
are not enough spaces for everybody on site, the nearest 
pay and display car park is usually full by 8.45am. 
CSH asked if we have approached Kirklees directly about 
leasing the land at Park Avenue, JNO has contacted them 
and is awaiting a response. 
Clerk will send a message to all governors advising them 
not to use the Park Avenue car park. 
 

 
 
 
 
MJO 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MJO/SLE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Clerk 

 
8. Covid Risks 
 

 
Nothing to discuss. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
9.Policies to 
review 

 
Health & Safety 
Financial Procedures & Regulations (Procedures) 
 
SLE asked MJO to look at these policies.  

 
 
 
 
MJO 



Page 9 of 9 

The H&S committee has been reconstituted and their key 
people should check the policy as well.  
JHO said staff have their old titles and these need updating. 
JHO said the Financial Procedures Policy needs updating 
with Flagstone and electronic payments etc. 

 
10. Any Other 
Business 
 

 
None 

 
 
 
 

 
11. Confidentiality 
 

 
The car park and the confidential settlement agreement. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
12. Date next mtg 
 

 
Next F&E; Thurs, 27 Apr, 4.30pm  

 
 

 
Minutes prepared by Sharon Roper (Clerk to the Corporation) on 10/03/23 
 
Approved & signed by Chair, John Holroyd on 27/4/23 


